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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors present the strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022 for Swissport UK Holding Limited
{the “Company"} and its subsidiaries (together the “"Group~).

Principal activities
The Group trades as an airport passenger ground handler, cargo handling agent and airport lounge services at or
near various airports in the United Kingdom.

Review of the business

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £250.7m (2021: £145.0m), and loss before taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was £20.1m (2021: £3.8m}.

The COVID-19 impact on the global aviation sectar has been seismic. UK aviation itself was grounded not once but
three times during 2020 and for the first four months of 2021. The aviation sector started trading again in the prior
year, with a fast climb back from a standstill with the official travel ban ending in May 2021, Year-on-year revenue
increased by 73% to register an operating loss of £5.5m (2021: £9.5m operating profit). The Group received an
income of £nil (2021: £19.7my} in the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS} grant from the UK government and
£2.0m {2021: £4.5m) from the Airpart and Ground Operators Support Scheme (AGOSS). The income is shown as
other operating income in the income statement.

Key performance indicators

KPl's applicable to the Group are: 2022 2021 increase/
{decrease)
vs PY
£000 £000 %
Revenue 250,669 144,975 73%
Operating (loss)/profit for the financial year (5,498) 9,489 {158)%
EBITDA 8,028 22,207 {64)%

Revenue consisls of aeropautical income generated frem cargo handling, ground handling and other services
provided 1o various airports throughout the United Kingdom. Revenue was up by 73% compared to the previous
year.

Operating loss was £5.5 million (2021: £9.5 million profit) and recorded EBITDA of £8 miltion (2021: £22.2 million)
for the financial year. The operating result and EBITDA are both adverse to the prior year KPI as a result of
operational challenges re-mobitising the workplace and as a result of incurring significant one-off costs,




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties

It is the aim of the directors to increase risk awareness across the Group and promote a culture where bath risk and
oppaortunity are identified and managed. The Group seeks to mitigate the impacts or reduce the likelihood of major
risk events, where practicable, and to insure risks were cost effective.

The principal risks that have been identified fall into the following categories:

External Risks
Competition

The Group operates in very competitive markets. Previously airport operating licences limiling service alternatives at
each airport minimised this risk, but this is increasingly less of a barrier 1o entry. The Group spends considerable
resources on continuously improving productivity and unit labour costs and planning and rosfering systems in
particular are regularly being improved. The Group pericdically refreshes its fleet of ground handling equipment
which increases operating costs. The Group is the third-party ground handling and cargo handling market leader in
the UK and a member of the global market leader.

Customer Liguidity

The Group's pritnary customers are airfines for whom liquidity may be an issue, particularly during a downturn in
demand when there is an increased risk of a major customer seeking creditor protection. A streng culture of credit
control within the Group ensures that this exposure is limited.

Economic activity

Demand for airline related services is driven primarily by economic aclivity, which tends to be adversely affected by
global factors such as termorism, war, and oil prices. The Covid pandemic, war in Ukraine and the cost-of-fiving crisis
resulted in severe restrictions on air-travel and has had a major impact on economic activity. As we enter 2024 there
is a risk the economy will enter a recession which could introduce further downward pressure. As the bulk of costs
are labour related, maintaining an element of temporary staffing allows a significant degree of flexibility to allow for
such occurrences.

Covid-19 Risks

The COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly, and in March 2020, all United Kingdom airports were closed by a
government mandate. Travel reopened in June 2021, and revenue, 2022 and 2023 have continued to imprave since
that time as travel restrictions have lifted following the worldwide rollout of vaccination and testing programs,
Trading is expected to strengthen further as the aviation industry returns 1o normal.




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Cyber risk

The Group is at a greater risk of a cyber-attack given that it operates in a crucial infrastructure as was evidenced by
the Groupwide Cybers-attack in February 2022. The business continues proactively managing risks associated with
data loss, GDPR non-compliance, and data control weaknesses. Failure to prevent a cyber-attack or data breach
couid negatively impact our custoemer and employee data, ground handiing and cargo operations, financial reporting
systems and stakeholder confidence. H could ultimately resutt in fines levied by the ICO. Swissport Implemented
several enhanced security protocols to mitigate future attacks; this includes 2-factor authentication and regutar
communication from Group IT on how to identify and avoid phishing scams. Periodic Cyber Awareness training has
been implemented and system improvements have been introduced to assist our people to identify suspicious
communications.

Internal Risks
Health and Safety

Airside operafions may be hazardous if not properly managed. Strong operating procedures, recurrent training and
on-going internal health and salety audits enable the Company to manage this risk. Despite this the Directors
acknowledge that given the nature of operations it is not possible 1o remove all risk and while incidents do occur
there is a risk of regulatary fines

Accidental damage

Although incidents are relalively few, the Group strives to eradicate accidental damage through a process of
continuous improvement and recutrent training which is conducted with more rigour than ihdustry recommended
standards, Contracts with airlines generally include the standard IATA liability limits and insurance cover is used to
miligate the financial impact of any incidents.

Failure to deliver

Ensuring continuous service delivery is critical. The following factors help to manage this risk:
* regular engagement with employees and therr representatives
* business continuity plans
« key sysiems disaster recovery.

Financial Risks

Price risk
The majority of sales contracts include annual inflation-linked rises, therefore protecting margins.

Credit risk
Credit risk is managed carefully, with some customers operating on a prepay basis or with limited credit. The
Directors review outstanding debt weekly and issue a collection strategy. Additional steps may be taken to further
reduce credit risk, when necessatry, including securing bank and parental company guarantees from a number of
customers.

Liguidity risk

The Group aims to minimise liquidity risk by managing cash generated by ils operations in line with group policies
and is improving its treasury management controls. The Group also benefits from the support of its penultimate
parent company, Swissport International AG, including covering any temporary negative net current liability position.
As at 31 December 2022 the Group was in net current liability position of £256. 1m (2021: £223.3m}.

Interest rate risk
External borrowings are predaminantly finance leases with fixed repayments including an interest element. Interest
accrues on our receivable loan from our Group Treasury pooling facility at a margin of EURIBOR.



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Section 172(1) Statement

This statement set oul, in accordance with section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006 how the Directors have had
regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 when performing their duties. The
Directors consider that the Directors have acted in a way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole (having regard to the stakeholders
and matters set out in s172(1) (a-f) of the Companies Act 2006) in the decisions taken during the year. In doing so
have regard (amongst other matters) to;

+ the likely consequence of any decision in the long term

+ the interests of the group's employees

« the need to foster the group’s business relationships with supgliers, customers, and others
+ the impact of the group’s operations on the community and the environment

+ the desirability of the group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

» the need to act fairly as between members of the group.

Board Composition

The Group is part of an Internationat Group of Companies. The Board of Directors is made up of three executive
Directors who have been selected owing to their demonstrable track record of success in the industry and chosen
specialism. The Director's performance is reviewed annually by the shareholder, and there is regular
communication between the Directors and the corresponding Director of Swissport International AG to ensure that
the goals of the Group are aligned to that of the International Group.

In addition to a scheduled programme of quarterly Board meetings, the Directors meet weekly, with the Executive
Leadership Team (ELT), during which there is feedback from various business areas, with particular focus on
specific stakeholder groups.

Remuneration

Director and key executive remuneration determined by Swissport Group's Directors. The performance of the
Directors is reviewed against the appropriate long-term and short-term targets which are set annually and measured
throughout the period. The group provides incentives which are linked to performance, targets are set by the
Swissport Group Directors and cascaded down to the Directors and key executives of the subsidiary companies,

Purpose and Leadership

The Board meetings incorporate the key and recurring feedback which has been received by the ELT and
implementing a long-term strategy, governance, and control to ensure that the group continues to achieve
sustainable growth while enhancing the reputation of the business amongst all stakeholdess.

The Board of directors regularly reviews the business' principa! suppliers, customers, and other stakeholders and
how we engage with them.

Stakeholder Engagement
Key Stakeholders are:
+ The shareholder — Swissport International AG
Key customers including airlines, airports and airport authorities
{ATA and other international aviation industry associations
Key suppliers
Air passengers
Shippers and forwarders
Our people
Trade unions and work councils
Local communities

*« & & " 2 e . »

The Board of direclors regularly reviews the business’ principal stakeholders and how it engages with them.




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Customers

Swissport delivers high-quality airport ground and air carge handling services, ranging from single passenger, ramp,
and cargo handling services to full hub outsourcing solutions. Customer and stakeholder refations are critical factors
for our success. The group is structured provide dedicated account managers to Airlines with whom they
communicate on a frequent basis, Station Managers for Ground Handling and Cargo operations to ensure that on
the ground service is maintained consistently and Airport Lounge Managers to ensure service delivery to our
passengers remains high,

Employees

The Group has a large workforce and maintains with a well-developed structure through which it engages regularly
with employees and their representatives, such as works councils and trade unions. The Group engages early with
employees regarding upcaming changes, including but not limited to remuneration, During these points of contact
Management seek feedback from employee groups which is then considered within the ELT meetings.

Health and Safety
The Board also receives a regular health and safety update so it can understand risks to employees, how
perfarmance is progressing, and the steps taken to improve emplayee safety.

Suppliers
The Group strives to engage in long-term relationships with suppliers who must comply with all applicable laws,
regulations, and standards, including the Swissport Cade of Conduct.

Shareholders

The Group 1s part of the Swissport International Group to which the Board is accountable. A formal monthly review
of performance is provided to the Group CEO and CFO with more frequent updates provided by the Group’s
Directors.

Engaging with the Environment

In our efforts to reduce the negative environmental impact of our operations, we focus on the efficient use of
resources, effective planning, lean processes, and invest in eco-friendly equipment and infrastructure. This
approach supports our ambition to achieve profitable growth and focus on value creation through sustainable
business practices. Significant new initiative introduced by the Group is the deployment of fully electric and hybrid
GSE (eGSE) instead of fossil-fuel powered vehicles. The pace of fransition to eGSE is limited to the availability of
new equipment with the market, we will utilise our strong supplier relationships to ensure that Swissport orders are
prioritised where. possible the availability of electric grid capacity and charging infrastructure available at Airports.

Cn behalf of the board

K Cox
Director

26 March 2024




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 16.

No ordinary dividends were paid. The directors cannot recommend payment of a final dividend.
Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up 1o the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

S Harrop {Appointed 11 January 2022}
K Cox {Appointed 21 April 2023)
N Kaddouri (Resigned 11 January 2022)
J Winstanley {Resigned 21 April 2023}

Financlal instruments

The Group's financial instruments comprise share capital, leases, loans received from other companies within its
group {(Swissport International Limited and Aguila Bid AG). The Group does not have any derivative financial
instruments. Financial instrument risks are described in the Strategic Report.

Research and development
The Group does not undertake any research and development (2021: Nil).

Disabled persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their
employment within the cormpany's continues and that the appropriate training is arranged, It is the policy of the
company that the training, career developmeni and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be
identical to that of other employees.

Employee involvement

The company's policy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings,
matters likely to affect employees' interests.

Information of matters of concern to employees is given through information bulleting and reports which seek to
achieve a comman awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
group's performance.




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Post reporting date events
Global economy & cost of living crisis

The recession forecasl for the global economy, the cost-ofdliving crisis, and the increase in interest rates may
reduce the demand for international trave! and the passenger numbers going through United Kingdom airports but is
unlikely to have a material impact on the Group for 2024 as the general trend forecast by the industry is for
continued growth,

Cyber security incident

©On 10 August 2023, a legacy system server used by the Group and containing pre 1 January 2020 data was
affected by a cybersecurity incident impacting a UK data centre in Engiand managed by the Group’s third-party
service provider. As soan as the Group learned of the incident, it immediately communicated to the users to prevent
any unauthorised access to the database. The third-party provider has launched an investigation, nolified law
enforcement, and engaged cybersecurity experts to help assess the scope of the incident. The breach was limited
to historic financial data with no adverse impact to operations.

Employer liability
The following non-adjusting events occurred afler the balance sheet date.

During February 2023 there was an incident where a Swissport emplayee performing work at an airport was
involved in a collision which resulted in injury. Swissport have received experl advice on the range of possible costs
associated with this incident, with the maximum amount being £1.5m.

In line with the requirements of IAS 37 no provision for the costs associated with these incidents has been made at
31 December 2021 due lo the time of their occurrence after the balance sheet date.

Issue of share capital

On 5 October 2023 Swissport UK Holding Limited 1ssued a further 2 shares for consideration of £151,396,498
settled by capitalisation of amounts owed to its immediate parent undertaking.

On 5 October 2023 Swissport Group UK Limited issued a further 1 shares for consideration of £32 659,102 settled
by capitalisation of amounls owed to its immediate parent undertaking.

Future developments

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Group and its operations and the Group's response to it are
discussed in the Strategic report.

On 16 June 2023, in the case Virgin Media v NTL Pension Trustees Il Limited (and others}), the High Court ruled on
the corract interpretation of historic legistation governing the amendment of conlracled-out DB schemes. The court
found that section 37 of PSA93 (“section 37") renders invalid and void any amendment to the scheme's rules which
refated to section 9(2B) rights, in so far as it was intrcduced without written actuarial confirmation that the scheme
would continue to satisfy the relevant statutory standard after the amendment was made. Further details can be
found in note 30.

Energy and carbon report

The Group has gathered data regarding scope one and scope two carbon emissions {as defined by the GHG
Protocof) for the financial year spanning 1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022 from its UK operations for
inclusion in Company Reporting (2022) as defined by the requirements of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR) legislation.The combined scope one and scope two carbon emissions for the period was
recorded at 8,364 TCOZ2e (2021: 4,107). The inlensity rate for the period is calculated at 36.750 tC02e per £m of
revenue from the Group operations. A detailed breakdown of our energy consumption by scope is included within
our return,

2022 2021
Energy consumplion kWh kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 39,188,559 17,263,992

oy




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Emissions of CO2 equivalent metric metric
tonnes tonnes

Scope 1 - direct emissions
- Gas combustion 6,866.00 1,899.00
- Fuel consumed for owned transport 1,138.00 889.00

8,004.00 2888.00
Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased 1,350.00 1,219.00
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions
- Fuel cansumed for transport not owned by the company - -

Total gross emissions 9,354.00 4,167.00
iIntensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per employee 1.914 1.080

Quantification and reporting methodology

All data has been collated from financial sources and converted using the assumptions detailed below into the
common measure of kWh with a conversion to Carbon Emissions using conversion factors sourced from UK
Government Department for Business, Energy, and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)1.

https:fiwww.gov.uk/government/collections/government-conversion-factors-for-company-reporting

All assets included within the scope and boundary have a consistent use profile. To ensure consistency across the
company an average unit rate for each fuel source was taken to calculate usage and converted inta energy/carbon.
Where invoicing was not availabie for any specific fuel the actual cost for the known periods have been estimated
by extrapolating the actual,

During the period of reporting the Group has been significantly impacted by the global pandemic in that operations
have been significanlly reduced, as operations return to previous levels actions wilt be implemented to minimise our
carbon impact.

Boundanes

The inclusion in this scope is:

Scope One

. Natural Gas (used for heating and hot water)

- Gas Oil (Red Diiesel used for plant and machinery)

. Liquid Petroleum Gas (used for plant)

. Business transport emissions (owned and leased transport)
Scope Two

. Imported Electricity

All sources as defined as scope three are voluntary for reporting under SECR. are excluded from Swissport UK
Holding Limited's reporting. The boundary for SECR reporting is where an asse! or operation is under the financial
control of Swissport UK Holding Limited.




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Statement of disclosure to auditor
Each director in office at the date of approval of this annual reporl confirms that:
» s0 far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware,
and
+ the director has taken alf the steps that he / she ought {o have taken as a director in crder to make himseif /
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. In assessing the going concem
assumptions, the Board has assessed the forecast outturns and identified downside risks and mitigating actions for
a 12 month period 1o 31 March 2025.

The COVID-19 crisis has significantly impacted the financial performance of all organisations in the industry,
including the Group.The most severe restrictions on movement and international travel were in 2020 and early
2021, Globally since 2021 markets have reopened and during November 2023 it was reported that air passenger
movements had reached 99.1% of pre-pandemic levels. Recent industry analysis predicts continued air passenger
growth over the going concern assessment period to 31 March 2025 and while the Directors acknowledge the cost-
of-living crisis and technical recession which the UK has recently entered these are not deemed to have a material
impact on the business Globally, many markets have re-opened, and current activity levels are rebounding. Recent
industry analysis gives a mare stable view of expected activity levels over the going concern assessment period to
31 March 2025. In their assessment, the Directors have utilised externally available data to inform their forecast
base case for the UK businesses operated by Swissport Group.

The Directors know that inflation and the cost-of-living crisis will likely have a residual impact in 2024 as markets
adjust. The budget and plan assumed an inflation rate of 5% in 2024 and 3% in 2025. The Group has no external
funding; therefare, the current interest rate increase does not adversely impact the Company's finances. The Board
has considered the forecasts, downside sensitivities, reverse stress test, and the cash resources available 1o the
Group. It has determined that the actions it has taken and measures the Group have available in the future, should
they be required, are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainty. General staff attrition levels and contract details allow the
Group to manage its tabour costs where necessary. Lease expenditure can be reduced, and experience gained
during the pandemic has also shown that nonJabour station overheads can be reduced when necessary.

Taking this into account and to assess the Group's ability to remain a going concern, management has modelled
both a base case scenario and a severe but plausible downside scenario through to 31 March 2025. The downside
scenario assumes a reduction in passenger revenue from the hase case of 10%. Under the severe but plausible
downside scenario management have assumed a cash outflow in November 2024 relaling to settlement of several
potential claims (refer note 29). During 2024 under the base case scenario the forecast cash balance ranges from a
low of £4.1m, which will be remediated by the Groups cash pooling arrangement and a high of £32.3m, with a 31
March 2025 closing balance of £19.9m. In both the base case scenario and the severe but plausible scenario, the
Group would not require financial support from its parent and entity.

The Directors assessed what level revenue would need to fall to that would render the going concern assumption
invalid, even with parental support. This reverse stress test was run at a 65% reduction in revenue; however, it is
assumed staff can be made redundant and other further cost savings made in this severe downside scenario 1o
mitigate the impact. The Directars, therefore, consider this a remote and implauvsible scenario.

Given sensitivity in the model and the low headroom in both the base and severe but plausible scenarios, the
Directors have obtained from Group their written confirmation that they will not seek repayment of intercompany
loans {amounting to £205m at the balance sheet date) and that they will provide financial support to the Company in
meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due, but only to the extent that money is not otherwise available to meet
such liabilities through to 31 March 2025 up to 2 maximum aggregate amount of £40m.

The Directors have considered the availability of that support from Group holding companies during adverse
circumstances, also taking into account that Group compleled a refinancing in September 2022 in which the
Company was subsequently made a cross-guarantor. They have reviewed the base and severe but plausible
downside forecast Group cash flows over the assessment period and concluded that Group would indeed be able to
provide the funding support. In coming to this conclusion, the Directors considered the Group’s historical forecasting
accuracy, the assumptions underpinning the forecast, and the amounts and timings of the cashflows, paricularly
noting the availability of cash balances and undrawn facilities.

As a result of the above review and analysis, the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
financial statements.

-10-
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GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

On behalf of the board

C:h’jlﬂ

K Cox
Director

26 March 2024
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards ("IFRSs”). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that peried.

In preparing these financial statements the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently.

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandatle information.

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of paricular transactions, other events and conditions on the group
and company financial position and financial performance;

« state whether UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject 1o any materia!
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the company’s financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
aiso responsible for safeguarding the assels of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a strategic report and
directors’ report that comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company's website.

-12.



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Swissport UK Holding Limited (‘the parent company’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the group income statement. the
group statement of comprehensive income, the group statement of financial position, the group statement of
changes in equity, the group statement of cash flows and the related notes 1 to 47, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
group financial statements is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
December 2022 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopied international
accounting standards;
the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
the financial statemnents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Audiling (UK} (I1SAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period to 31 March 2025,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the
relevan! sections of this report. However, because not all fulure evenis or econditions can be predicted. this
statemnent is not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

-13.-



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report [set out on pages), other than the
financial statements and our auditor's reporl thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the annuat report.

Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work underiaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the sirategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for aur audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneralion specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 12, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financia! statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inciudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined abeove, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecling a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. or through collusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However,
the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of
the entity and management.

+ We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company
and determined that the most significant are those that relate to the financial reporting framework (IFRS
and the Companies Act 2006) and the relevant direct and indirect tax compliance regulations in the United
Kingdom. In addition, the Company has to comply with employment law and reguiations, health and safety
and GDPR.

« We understood how Swissport UK Halding Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries
of management to understand how the Company maintains and communicates its policies and procedures
in these areas and corroborated this by reading supporting documentation and minutes of meetings of
those charged with governance.

* We assessed the susceptibility of the Company's financial statements to material misstatement, including
how fraud might occur by assessing risk of fraud absent of controls, and then identifying controls which are
in place at an entity level and whether the design of these controls is sufficient for the prevention and
detection of fraud, utilising internal and external information to perform our risk assessment. We considered
the risk of fraud through management override and considered the design and implementation of controls
at the financial statements level to prevent this, as well as incorporating data analytics in our audit
approach.

« Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws
and regulations. Our procedures involved making enquiries of management and those charged with
governance, reading of board minutes, commespondence with regulators and external specialists and
evaluating any matters of non compliance.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at hitps:/iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of aur
auditor’s repart.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fulest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body. for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formied.

DocuSigned by:

Emst & \k’“"i we

Jamie Dixon (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP 26 March 2024

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes
Revenue from ¢ontracts with customers 4
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Operating (loss)/profit §
Share of profits of joint ventures
Finance income 9
Finance costs 10
Loss before taxation
Income tax income/{expense) 1"

Loss for the year

Loss for the financial year is all atiributable to the owners of the parent company and derive from continuing

cperations.

All results derive from continuing operations.

The nofes on pages 22 to 73 form part of these group financial statements.

2022
£'000

250,669
(202,195)

48,474

2,069
(56,859)
(6,316}
386
1,092
{15,271)
{20,109}
217

(19,892)

- 15 -

2021
£'000

144,975
(116,133)

28,842

24,361
(43,714)
9,489
51
1,017
(14,379)
(3.822)
(666)

(4,488)



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Loss for the year {19,892) {4,488)
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or [oss
Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension schemes (4,697) 19,526
Deferred tax {48) {1,701)
Tota! items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (4,745) 17,825

Total comprehensive (loss)lincome for the year (24,637} 13,337

Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year is all attrnbutable to the owners of the parent company.

All results derive from conlinuing operations.

The notes on pages 22 to 73 form part of these group financial statements,
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investments in joint ventures
Other receivables

Deferred tax asset

Retirement benefit surplus

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilitles

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Provisions

Net current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Long term provisions
Retirement benefit obligations

Net liabilities

Equity

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Retained eamings

Total equity

Notes

13
14
14
15
20
28
30

19
20

26
22
27
29

22
27
29
30

31
32

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
4,064 4,064
14,439 15,302
37,330 39,189
1454 1,067
8,551 6,923
3,430 3,387
1,097 1,478
70,365 71,410
1,013 1,378
83,995 50,694
269 1,366
85,277 53,438
76,474 44,362
237,939 213,407
8,376 10,319
11,637 8,600
334,426 276,688
(249,149) (223,250)
121,596 122,616
41,338 41,449
6.933 7,536
7,486 8,059
177.353 179,660
(356,137) (331,500)
100 100
24,754 24,754
{380.991) (356,354)

{356,137) (331,500)
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Ali results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 22 to 73 form part of these group financial statements.

The financial statements were appraoved by the board of directors and autharised for issue on 26 March 2024 and
are signed on its behalf by:

K Cox
Director

Company registration number 07466896 (England and Wales)
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Balance at 1 January 2021

Year ended 31 December 2021:

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains on pensions scheme

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Batance at 31 December 2021

Year ended 31 December 2022:

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains on pensions scheme

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Batance at 31 December 2022

Al results derive from conlinuing operations.

Share Share Retained
capital  premium  earnings
account
£'000 £000 £'000
100 24,754 {369,691)
- - (4,488)
- - 19,526
- - {1,701)
- - 13,337
100 24,754 {356,354)
. - (19,892)
- - (4,697}
- - (48)
- - (24,637)
100 24,754  (380,991)

The notes on pages 22 to 73 form part of these group financial statements.

=20~

Total

£'000

{344,837)

(4.488)
19,526
(1.701)

13,337

(331,500

(19,892)

(4,697)
(48)

(24,637)

(356,137)



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Interest paid
Finance expense

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loans made to other entities

Interest received

Other income received from investments

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

Payment of obligations under finance leases

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

All results derive from continuing operatiens.

Notes

38

2022
£'000 £000
17,295
{1,003)
(240)
16,052
(3,553}
259
{239)
1
500
{3,032)
{(1.212)
(12,5085)
(14,117)
(1,097)
1,366
269

The notes on pages 22 to 73 form part of these group financial statements.

2021
£000 £'000
28,460
(9.956)
18,504
(642)
262
(3.887)
17
1,000
(3,260)
{1.183)
(13,404)
(14,587)
657
709

1,366




SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

1.1

Accounting policies

Company information

The cansclidated financial statements of Swissport UK Holding Limited and ifs subsidiaries {collectively, the
Group) for the year ended 31 December 2022 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 22 March 2024. Swissport UK Holding Limited {the Company) is a private Company incorporated,
domiciled, and registered in the UK.

The group consists of Swissport UK Holdings Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
("Adopted IFRSs"),

The consclidated financial statements of the Group and Company have been prepared on a historical cost
basis. The carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities that are designated as hedged items in fair
vafue hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to recognise changes in the fair
values attributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge relationships. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(£000), except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, The principal accounting
policies adopted are set oul below.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NQOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

Accounting policies (Continued)

1.2 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022. Controt is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returas through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

- Exposure, of rights, 1o variable returns from its involvement with the investee

- The ability to use its power over the investee o affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in contsol. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar sights of an investee, the Group considers
alt relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

+ The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vole hoiders of the investee
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
- The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or mare of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liahilities, income, and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains contro} until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each compenent of OCI are attributed 10 the equily holders of the parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this resulls in the non-conirolling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in Ine with the Group's accounting policies. Al intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction,

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), kabilities,

non-controlling interest, and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value,
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

13

Accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations
a} Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value,
and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s idenfifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and
included in administrative expenses.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The acquired process is considered substanlive if it is critical ta the ability to continue producing outputs, and
the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is
considered unigque or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financiaf assets and liabifities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractuat terms, economic circumstances. and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingen! consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset of liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. Other contingent
consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Goadwill is initially measured at cost {being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration fransferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the
aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goadwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating unils that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained,

b} Investment in associates and joint ventures
An assaciate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to

participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not contro! or joint control over
those policies.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

1.3

Accounting policles {Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

b) Investment in assoclates and joint ventures {continued)

A joint venture is a type of juint arrangement wheraby the parties that have joint controf of the arrangement
hava rights to the net assels of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries. The Group's investment in its associate and joint venture are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associate or jeint venlure since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCI| of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OC\. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when apphcable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are efiminated to
the extent of the interest in the associate or joint veniure.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown an the face of
the statement of profit or loss in operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and noncontrolling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment foss on ifs investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and it's carmrying value, and then recognises the loss
within ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of prafit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the refained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

14

Accounting policies {Continued)

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. In assessing the going concern
assumptions, the Board has assessed the forecast outturns and identified downside risks and mitigating
actions for a 12 month period to 31 March 2025,

The COVID-19 crisis has significantly impacted the financial performance of all organisations in the industry,
including the Group.The most severe restrictions on movement and international travel were in 2020 and early
2021. Globally since 2021 markets have reopened and during November 2023 it was reported that air
passenger movements had reached 99.1% of pre-pandemic levels. Recent industry analysis predicts
continued air passenger growth over the going concern assessment periad to 31 March 2025 and while the
Directors acknowledge the cost-of-living crisis and technical recession which the UK has recenlly entered
these are nol deemed to have a material impact on the business Globally, many markets have re-opened, and
current activity levels are rebounding. Recent industry analysis gives a more stable view of expected activity
levels aver the going cancern assessment period to 31 March 2025. In their assessment, the Directors have
utilised externally available data to inform their forecast base case for the UK businesses operated by
Swissport Group.

The Directors know thai inflation and the cost-of-living crisis will likely have a residual impact in 2024 as
markets adjust. The budget and plan assumed an inflation rate of 5% in 2024 and 3% in 2025. The Group has
no external funding; therefore, the current interest rate increase does not adversely impact the Company's
finances. The Board has considered the forecasts, downside sensitivities, reverse stress test, and the cash
resources available to the Group. It has determined that the actions it has taken and measures the Group
have available in the fulure, should they be required, are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainty. General staff
attrition Jevels and contract delails allow the Group to manage its labour costs where necessary. Lease
expenditure can be reduced, and experience gained during the pandemic has also shown that nondabour
station overheads can be reduced when necessary.

Taking this inte account and to assess the Group's ability to remain a going concern, management has
modelled both a base case scenario and a severe but plausible downside scenario through to 31 March 2025,
The downside scenaric assumes a reduction in passenger revenue from the base case of 10%. Under the
severe but plausible downside scenario management have assumed a cash outflow in November 2024
relating to setttement of severa! potential claims {refer note 29). During 2024 under the base case scenario
the forecast cash balance ranges from a low of £4.1m, which will be remediated by the Groups cash pooling
arrangement and a high of £32.3m, with a 31 March 2025 closing balance of £19.9m. In both the base case
scenario and the severe but plausible scenario, the Group would not reguire financial support from its parent
and entity. The Directors assessed what level revenue would need {o fall to that would render the going
concern assumption invalid, even with parental support. This reverse stress test was run at a 65% reduction in
revenue; however, it is assumed staff can be made redundant and othes further cost savings made in this
severe downside scenario to mitigate the impact. The Directors, therefore, consider this a remote and
implausibie scenario.

Given sensitivity in the model and the low headroom in both the base and severe but plausible scenarios, the
Directors have obtained from Group their written confirmation that they will not seek repayment of
intercompany loans (amounting to £205m at the balance sheet date) and that they will provide financial
support to the Company in meeling its liabilities as and when they fall due, but only to the extent that money is
not otherwise available to meet such liabilities through to 31 March 2025 up 1o a maximum aggregate amount
of £40m.

The Directors have considered the availability of that support from Group holding companies during adverse
circumstances, also taking into account that Group completed a refinancing in September 2022 in which the
Company was subsequently made a cross-guarantor. They have reviewed the base and severe but plausible
downside forecast Group cash flows over the assessment period and concluded that Group would indeed be
able to provide the funding support. In coming to this conclusion, the Directors considered the Group's
historical forecasting accuracy, the assumptions underpinning the forecast, and the amounts and timings of
the cashflows, particularly noting the availability of cash balances and undrawn facilities. As a result of the
above review and analysis, the Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its fnancial
statements.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

15

1.6

Accounting policies {Continued)

The Directors have considered the availability of that support from Group holding companies during adverse
circumstances, also taking into account that Group completed a refinancing in September 2022 in which the
Company was subsequently made a cross-guarantor. They have reviewed the base and severe but plausible
downside forecast Group cash flows over the assessment period and concluded that Group wauld indeed be
able to provide the funding support, In coming to this conclusion, the Directors considered the Group’s
historical forecasting accuracy, the assumptions underpinning the forecast, and the amounts and timings of
the cashflows, particularfy noting the availability of cash baiances and undrawn facilities.

As a result of the above review and analysis, the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its financial statements.

Revenue

Revenue from ramp, passenger, inta-plane fuelling, and other aviation related services income is recognised
at the time the service is provided in accordance with the terms of the relevant contract. Air cargo services
revenue is recognised at the point of departure for exports and at the point that the goods are ready for
despatch for imposts. Revenue excludes value added and sales taxes and charges collected on behalf of
customers. Airport lounge revenue is recognised on the date that the lounge visit takes place. If a lounge visit
is booked in advance and not cancelied, and the passenger does not attend revenue is recognised on the
scheduled booking date.

The timing of customer billing in relation to the satisfaction of performance obligations result in amounts being
recorded in the Balance Sheet for accrued and deferred income. Individual billing arrangements vary by
customer and contract. Accrued income is recagnised oh contracts for which perfarmance obligations have
been satisfied but have not yet been billed to customers at the Balance Sheet date. When the recovery of
such amounts becomes uncondilional the customer is billed and the amounts are transferred to trade
receivables. Deferred income is recognised in respect of payments received from customers in advance of the
Company fulfilling its performance abligations under contracts.

Property, plant and equipment

Propersty, plant and equipment are slated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and foss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefuf lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are
as follows.

Freehold land and buildings 10 years
Fixtures and fittings 4 years
Plant and equipment 4 to 10 years
Computers 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years
Right-of-use assets 3 to 15 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carnrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the income statement.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies {Continued})

1.7 Non-current investmants
Interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are inilially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for
impairment at each reporting date and any impairment losses or reversals of impaiiment losses are
recognised immediately in profit or |oss.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the parent company. Controt is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity so as 10 obtain benefits from its activities.

An associate is an entity, being neither 2 subsidiary nor a joint venture, in which the group heolds a long-term
interest and has significant influence. The group considers that it has significant influence where it has the
power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the associate,
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies {(Centinued)

Non-current investments (continued)

Entities in which the group has a long term interest and shares control under a contractual arrangement are
classified as jointly controlled entities.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each reporting end date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amoum of the asset is estimated in crder to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where il is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individua! asset,
the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belengs.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an mpairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 5o that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately n profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct {abour cosis and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventaries to their present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term fiquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrewings in current liabilities.
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1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-dervative financial instruments comprise trade and other debtors, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowings, and trade and ather creditors.

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and ofher credifors

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at fair value, Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are staled at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments in jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets (incltuding lrade and other receivables)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the confract and all the cash flows thal the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rale. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. The
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the trade receivables and the economic
environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information thai is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days past due. However,
in cerlain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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1.12

1.13

1.14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets {continued)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vajue of
money and any risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets thal cannot be tested
individually are grouped fogether into a CGU which represents the smallest group of assets which together
generate cash inflows from continuing use, and which are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs. The goodwill acgquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is
allocated to CGUs, or a group of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and reflects the lowest level at which goodwil is monitored for internal reporting purposes.

An impairment loss is recagnised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds ils estimated
recoverable amouni. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGlls are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated te the units, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only 1o the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the parent company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer payable
at the discretion of the company.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and
loss account except to the extent that it refates to items recognised direclly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax is the expected fax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxahle profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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1.18

1.16

1.17

Accounting policies {Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liability,

Employee henefits
Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash
bonus or prefit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the company is demonstrably commifted, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed pian to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the company
has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date,
then they are discounted to their present value.

Retirement benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit
and loss account in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit pians

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits is
caiculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value ot
any plan assets (at bid price) are deducted. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability/{(asset).

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Company
recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined
benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in profit or loss.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions and takes into account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements.
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1.18

Accounting policies (Continued)

Leases

A lease contract is a contract which conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified asset for a period in
exchange for consideration. The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is a lease contract,
or whether an element of the contract contains a lease.

Company and Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of law-value assets. The Group recognises lease payment liabilities and the right to use the
underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e,, the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets inciudes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct caosts incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorier of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets, as follows:

¢+ Property 3 to 15 years
* Motor vehicles and ground support equipment (GSE) 3 to 8 years
+ Computers 3 to 5years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the date the underlying asset is available for use the Group recognises lease liablities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivabie, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounis expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses 1n the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date when the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to refiect accrued interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to fulure payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 21).

iii) Short-term leases and leases of ljow-value assets

The Group applies the low value asset exemption to leases of office equipment that are low value and the
short-term lease recegnition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment which have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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1.18

1.19

1.20

Accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases Covid-19 related rent concessions

As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such
concessions might take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 28
May 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional practical expedient for
lessee from assessing whether a rent concession related to CQVID-18 lease modification. Lessees can elect
to account for such rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In
many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in
which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payments occurs.

The praclical expedient only applies to lessees’ rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and anly if all of the following conditions are met;
+ the change in lease payment results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
« any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2022 and
« there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Managemeni have adopted the optional treatment practical expedient and have accounted for rent
concessions in the same way as they would for variable lease payments in the period in which the event that
triggered the reduced payment.

Grants
A government grant is recegnised only when there is reasonable assurance that (a) the entity will comply with
any conditions attached to the grant and (b) the grant will be received.

The grant is recognised as other operaling income over the period necessary to match them with the related
costs, for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. A grant receivable as compensation
for costs already incurred or for immediate financial support, with no further related costs, should be
recognised as income in the period in which it is receivable. The grant must be recognised within income and
must not be offset against expenditure (e.g. Payroll costs) in profit or loss.

For the monthly CJRS grant income, the income will be recognised in the period to which the underlying
furloughed staff costs relate to. The payroll liability has been incurred by the entity, and it has therefore met
the conditions to claim for that payroll accounting period.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Group's functional currencies at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cuirencies at
the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling a that
date. Nan-manetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and labilities
denominated in forelgn currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences arising
on translation are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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1.1

Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenses

interest receivable and interest payable

Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as
labilities and finance leases recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. unwinding of the
discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the profit and loss account
(see foreign currency accounting policy). Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds
invested and net foreign exchange gains.

interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest

methed. Dividend income is recogrised in the profit and loss account on that date the entity’s right to receive
payment is established. Foreign currency gains and iosses are reported on a net basis.
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3

Adoption of new and revised standards and changes in accounting policies

In the current year, the following new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted by the
graup and have an effect on the current period or a prior period or may have an effect on future periods:

Standards which are in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations, which
have not yet been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

New, revised or amended standards and interpretations Effective Date
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financiat Statements and IFRS Practice 1 January 2023
Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policies*

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
and Errars: Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of 1 January 2023
Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts; including Amendments to IFRS 17** 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assels and 1 January 2023

Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction*
* No significant impacts are expected on the financia$ statements.

** The Company has provided guarantees to other Swissport Group companies. There amounts fall within the
scope of IFRS 17 and upon adoption of the standard will be treated as insurance contracts. Management's
assessment of whether adoption of IFRS 17 will have a significant impact on the Financial Statements
currently ongoing.

New standards will be applied at the effective date.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements required the Directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that may affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, and income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates,

Management have determined that there are some key areas requiring the use of estimates and judgements
which may significantly affect the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of cash generating units (CGUs)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

CGUs are determined as airpont stations and split between separate cargo and ground handling CGU
activities because this is how management monitors operations and makes decisions. The value-in-use
calculation is based on a DCF model. The recoverable amount is sensitive fo the discount rate used for the
DCF model, the expected future cash-inflows, and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key
assumplions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity
analysis, are detailed further in note 12.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Centinued)

Leases

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate IFRS 16.26. The Company cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter financing
transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make cerain entity-specific estimates
such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Defined benefit plans (pension benefits}

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post employment, medical benefits and the present
value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation invalves
making various assumptions that may differ from acluai developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, fulure salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and Its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highily
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interes! rates of corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation with at least an 'AA' rating or above, as set by an internationally
acknowledged rating agency, and exirapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the
expected term of the defined benefit obligation, The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those
having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The moriality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
1ables tend to change only atintervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected fulure inflation rates for the respective countries.

Employer Hability

A pravision has been recognised in respect of probable payments in respect of workplace injuries for
compensation to employees and regufatory fines. The timing of when these costs would be incurred is
uncertain due to variability in the time required for investigations and rulings. Assumptions on timings and
amounts of costs are based on industry experts’ opinions, past experience and guidance from externai legal
experts. The amounts provided for regulatory fines are at the top end of the range of potential costs for high
culpability, harm category 2, as advised by external legal experts which provides a sentencing fine range from
£0.3m to £1.5m, if an incident were assessed as harm category 1, the category above the fine range would be
£1.5m to £6m. The estimate for the probable oufflow of payments for compensation to employees has been
based on an actuarial valuation prepared by 3rd party insurance actuaries and adopted by management. See
note 28 for further detail.

Deferred tax asset

A critical accounting estimate exists with reference to the assumptions contained within the prafit forecasts
supporting the DTA and the inherent uncertainty that exists when forecasting farward several years when
determining the DTA recognition arising on losses and timing differences. At the balance sheet date the
judgement applied in respect of DTA recognition relating to losses also considers recent utilisation and in
particular where there has been no utilisation in recent periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Revenue

Revenue analysed by class of business
Airport passenger ground handling

Cargo handling

Airport lounges

All revenue is derived from activities in the UK,
Operating (loss)profit
Operating (loss)/profit for the year is stated afier charging/{crediting):

Exchange losses

Severance and redundancy pay

Coronavirus job retention scheme (CJRS)

Airport and Ground Operators Support Scheme (AGOSS)

Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company's financial
statements

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciaton of right of use assets

Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, piant and equipment

Auditor's remuneration
Fees payable to the company's auditor and associates;
For audit services

Audit of the financial statements of the group and company
Audit of the financial statements of the company's subsidiaries

Employees

2022
£'000

152,495
81,178
16,996

250,669

2022
£'000

829
(1,979)

1.018
4,139
9,376

18

2022
£'000

2021
£000

69,913
72,709
2,353

144,975

2021
£'000

22
1,904

(19,746)

(4,578)

635
4,701
9,136

(17)

2021
£'000

14
621

635

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group during the year was:

Operations
Administration

Total

2022

Number

4,904
219

5,123

2021
Number

3,638
164

3,802
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7 Employees

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries

Sacial security costs

Pension costs

Severance & redundancy costs

Other Operating Income — Coronavirus Jop Retention Scheme Grants

8 Directors' remuneration

2022
£'000

150,880
13,692
4,272
829

169,673

{Continued)

2021
£'000

90,117
6,824
4,346
1,904

(19,746}

The directors of the company are also directors of the holding company and fellow UK subsidiaries. The
directors received total remunerabon for the year of £905327 (2021: £662,648), all of which was paid
by Swissport GB Limited, a company under common control. The aggregate amount of total remuneration
paid to the highest paid director was £414,652 (2021: £279 441) and contribution to pension scheme for that
director amounted to £14,188 {2021: £13,481). The directors do nat believe that it is practicable to apportion
this amount between their services as directors of the company and their services as directors of the hotding

and fellow UK subsidiary companies.
9 Finangce and other income
Finance income

Bank deposits
Other interest income on financial assets

Financial instruments not measured at amortised cost:
Net interest on defined benefit asset
Total interest revenue

Other income
Dividend income from joint ventures

2022
£'000
562
563
29

502

500

1,092

Other interest income relates to assets held at amortised costs, unless stated otherwise,

2021
£000

17

1,000

1,017
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10 Finance costs

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Interest on bank loans 248 268
Interest on lease labilities 3,335 4,155
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 106 367
Other interest payable 11,582 9,589
Total interest expense 15,271 14.379

11 Income tax expense

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period 1,295 (142)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 87) (942)
Group relief receivable (1,420) 171
Totat UK current tax {212) (813)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (4) 2,13
Changes in tax rates - (346)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1) (208)

(5) 1.579

Total tax (credit)/charge {217y 666
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11 Iincome tax expense {Continued)

The charge for the year ¢an be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

2022 2021

£'000 £°000
Loss before taxation (20,109) (3.822)
Expected tax credit based on a corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) (3,821) {726)
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 2276 348
Income not taxable {95) (19D)
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets {54) 41
Adjusiment in respect of prior years (6151 (942)
Group relief {1,476} -
Effect of cverseas tax rates - 38
Deferrad tax adjustments in respect of prior years - (2086)
Fixed asset differences 156 (t.129)
Remeasurement of deferred lax for tax rates 940 (8.143)
Deferred tax not recognised 1,944 11,400
Amounts (charged)/credited directly to SORIE or otherwise fransferred - 175
Taxation (credit)/charge for the year (217) 666

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been
tecognised directly in other comprehensive income:

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Deferred tax arising on;
Actuarial differences recognised as other comprehensive income 438 1,701

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £42 480,029 (2021: £36,914,000) in respect of losses
and timing differences available to offset against future trading profits. A deferred tax asset is recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Factars that may affect the future tax charge

The standard rate of UK corporate tax is 19% and this tock effect from 1 April 2017. The 2016 Finance Act
introduced a UK corporate tax rate of 17% from 1 April 2020, Accordingly, these rates were applicable in the
measurement of deferred tax assets and ltabilities at 31 December 2021. The budget which took place on 11
March 2020 confirmed the rate of corporation tax will remain at 19% from 1 April 2020, cancelling the enacted
rate reduction to 17%. The rate reduction reversal was substantively enacted on 11 March 2020 by a way of
special resolution. Deferred tax has been provided at 19% being the rate at which temporary differences are
expected to reverse. The rate was subsequently increased to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023 in Budget of
March 2021 and this was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021,

.41 -
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12

Impairments

Station CGU

The recoverable amount of each station cash generating unit (CGU) has been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation ysing cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management
covering five years, Station CGUs are split between cargo and ground handling activities. The projected cash
flows have been updated to reflect decreased service demand. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 10% and is derived from the companies weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC
considers both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the
company. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings the company is obliged to service.
Cash flows are matched to the life of the assets or in the case of right of use assets the length of the lease
within CGU. The growth rate used is consistent with the forecast of the same period, up to 5 years and then
utilises the long-term aviation growth rate of 3.2% for annual increases beyond a 5 year period. The
management conciuded that the carrying amount did not exceed the value in use, and therefore, no
impairment was required in the current financial year,

Key assumptions uysed in value in use calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The calculation of value in use for stations is most sensitive to the following assumplions:

. Growth rates (Passenger numbers / Expected cargo tonnage}
. Discount rates
Growth rates

The 2023 budget assumes that passenger volumes will recover to 90% of 2019 levels with a strong desire to
return to air travel following the years during the pandemic when it was not possible. Passenger volumes are
expected to recover to 2019 levels by 2024. A reduction in growth rates by 2% in each year would not result in
an impairment.

Discount rates

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual! risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorparated in the cash flow estimates. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 10.0%
and is derived from the companies weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC considers both debt
and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the company. The cost of
debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings the company is obliged to service. A rise in the pre-tax
discount rate of 3% would not result in an impairment.

There are no reasonably possible changes in the assumptons above that would resull in an additional
impairment

-42-
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13 Intangible assets

Goadwill
£000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 4,064
At 31 December 2021 4,064
At 31 December 2022 4,064
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2022 4,064

At 31 December 2021 4,064

Goodwill impairment

The Goodwill was recognised when Heathrow Cargo Handling Limited (HCH) was acquired. The recoverable
amount of the HCH cash generating unit (CGU) has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow prejections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering five years. The
projected cash flows have been updated to reflect decreased service demand. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 10.7% and is derived from the companies weighted average cost of capital
(WACC). The WACC considers both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected retumn
on investment by the company. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrawings the company is
obliged to service. Cash flows beyand the five years are extrapolated using a 3.0% growth rate, the sarne as
the long-term average growth rate for the aviation industry. It was concluded that the value in use exceeds the
carrying amount and therefore no impairment has been identified. Management have conducted several
scenarios and note that cashflow forecasts would need to fall 60% before an impairment is identified.

.43 .
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15 Investments

Non-current
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Investments in joint ventures 1,453 1,067

1,453 1,067

Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Except as detailed below, the directors believe that the carrying amounts of financial assets carried at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

The directors carried out a review of investments In the year and established impairment indicators in four
subsidiary undertakings. The directors undertook a fair value calculation of the investments with no
adjustment to the carrying value (2021: nil}. This new valuation reflects the net assets of the investments held
al the year end.
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16

Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registerad office

Swissport GB Limited
Swisspart Limited
Swisspart Stansted
Limited

Swissport Fuelling
Limited

Swissporl Fuelling
Services UK Limited
Swissport Group UK
Limited

Flightcare
Multiservices UK
Limited

Swissport Holdings
Limited

Servisarx Holdings BV
Servisair Denmark AS

Heathrow Cargo
Handhng Limited

International Airfine
Handling {Dublin)

| :mited

Smar Handling 8V

Sham-ock Logistics
Limited

Inlernat onal Airway
Handling (Cork)
Limited
International Airway
Handiing (Shannon)
Limited

Servisair Nominees
Services Limited
Trad ng Spaces
Limited

Swissport Cargo
Services UK Limited
Swissport Pension
Truslee Limited

England and Wales
England and Wales
Fngland and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
t:ngland and Wales

England and Wales

England and Wates

The Netherlands
Denmark
England and Wales

Republic of irefand
The Netherlands
Enaland and Wales

Republic of redand

Republic of Ireland

Republic of Ireland
Republic of reland
Engfand and Wales

England and Wales

Principal activities

Airport sarvices
Non-trading
Aircraft handling agent

Aircraft refueler
Aircraft refueller
Holding Company

Cleaning and catering

Helding Company

Helding Company
Airport services
Cargo handlng agent

Oommant
Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant
Dormant
Non-{rading

Dormant

Class of
shares held

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary
QOrdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

% Held

Diroct

100.00

100.00

100.00

Indiract

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.60

100.00
100.00
100.60

100.60

100.00
100.00

100.00

104 0C

100.00

100.00

100.00
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Subsidiaries {Continued)

Audit exemption

The subsidiary undertakings also consolidated at 31 December 2022, all of which were indirectly and wholly
owned, unless otherwise stated, and claimed exemption from audit under section 479A Companies Act 2006.
were as follows;

Company
number
Incorporated Company Principal Activities
England & Wales Swissport Limited ** 03810974 Non-trading
England & Wales Swissport Cargo Services UK Limited ** 02719480 Non-trading
England & Wales Swissport Group UK Limited ** 00924991 Holding Company
England & Wales Swissport Fuelling Limited 05282071 Aircraft refuller
England & Wales Swissport Standsted Limited 04341296 Aircraft handling
agent

England & Wales Flightcare Multiservices UK Limited 00732832 Cleaning and catering
England & Wales Swissport Fuelling Services UK Limited 07663369 Aircraft refuller
England & Wales Heathrow Cargo Handling Limited 3076274 Cargo Handling Agent

** directly owned.
Joint ventures

Details of the group's joint ventures at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered office Principal activities  Interast % Held

held Direct
SwissporlALD Holdings Limited England and Wales Airport lounges Ordinary 51.00
Bradford Swissport Limiled England and Wales Cargo handling Ordinary §0.00
SwissportALD Limited England and Wales Airport lounges Ordinary 51.60
No 1 Lounges t.Ad England and Wales Airport lounges Ordinary 51.00
No 1 Lounges (LGW) Ltd England and Wales Airpott lounges Ordinary 51.00
No 1 Lounges (LHR) Ltd England and Wales Airport lounges Ordinary 51.00
No 1 Lounges (BHX) Ltd England and Wales Aimport lounges Ordinary 51.00

Investment in joint ventures

Investment in
Joint Ventures

£000
As at 1 January 2021 1,017
Share of net profit/(loss) 1,050
Dividends Reteived (1,000}
As at 1 January 2022 1,067
Share of net profit/(loss) 886
Dividends Received

(500)

.48-
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18

Investment in joint ventures

As at 31 December 2022

investment in joint ventures

Bradford Swissport Limited
SwissportALD Holdings Limited

2022
£'000

1,453

1,453

(Continued)

1,453

2021
£000

1,068

1,068

Swissport ALD Holdings Limited is loss making, the investment has been impaired down to £nil, and

therefore we have not disclosed the financial information.

Summarised financial information en the joint venture of Bradford Swissport Limited, based on their IFRS
financial statements, and a reconciliation wilh the carrying amount of the investment in joint ventures in the

consolidated balance sheet, are set out below:

Revenue
Cost of Sales

Gross Profit
Other Operating Income
Administrative Expenses

Net Profit before Tax
Taxation

Net Profit
Group's share

Non-current assets
Current Assets

Totat Assets

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Group’s Share of net assets

Camrying Amount of the investment in joint ventures

.49 -

2022
£'000

11,339
(7,593)

3.746
(1,532)

2,214
(444)

1,770
885

51
6,205

6,256

(3,350)

(3,350)

2021
£'000

7.264
(4,991)

2,273
904
(730}

2.447
(398)

2,049
1,025

54
5,080

5,134

{2,988)

(2,998)

2,136
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19

20

Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

A list of all joint ventures is disclosed in Note 17,

No joint ventures had contingent liabilities or capital commitments at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The joint
ventures cannot distribute their distributable reserves until they obtain consent from the joint venture
partners.

Inventories
2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Raw materials 1,013 1,378

Raw materials and consumables recognised as cost of sales in the year amounted to £6,070,605 (2021:
£1.,466,465,000). There were no write downs of inventories during the year (2021: £nil).

Replacement cost of inventory equates to their carrying value.

Trade and other receivables

Current Non-current

2022 2021 2022 2021

£'900 £'000 £000 £'000

Trade receivables 54,336 39,950 - -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (8,479) {8,065) - -
46,357 31,885 - -

Amounts owed by joint ventures - - 4,688 3,887
Amounts owed by related parties 12,802 10,364 - -
Other debtors 17,624 8,916 - -
Other receivables for government grant - - 3,863 3,036
Prepayments 7,212 1,529 - -
83,995 50,694 8,551 6,923

-50-
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21  Fair value of financlal assets

Fair value of trade recelvables
The directors consider that the carrying amount of frade and other receivables differs from fair value as

follows:
Carrying value Fair value
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade receivables net of allowances 46,357 31,885 46,357 31,885
Other debtors 21,487 9,952 21,487 9,952
Prepayments 7,212 1,529 7,212 1,529

75,056 43,366 75,056 43,366

No significant receivable balances are impaired at the reporting end date.

Movement in the aliowances for doubtful debts 2022 2021
£000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2022 and at 31
December 2022 B.479 8,065

22 Borrowings

Current Non-current
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Borrowings held at amortised cost:

Bank loans 1.015 960 2,807 3,826
Loans from parent undertaking 236,924 212,291 - -
Loans from related parties - 156 118,789 118,780
237,939 213,407 121,596 122,616
2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Secured borrowings included above:
Bank loans 3,822 4,786

-51.
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23

24

Borrowings (Continued)

The loan from Aguila Bid GmbH, included within loans from related parties, is subject to a fixed interest rate of
0.8% per annum. The loan is cutrently on an interest-only repayment basis with no repayment date for the
principal loan amount. On 5 Qclober 2023 the Agila Bid loan was exchanged pound for pound with the
Swissport AG Loan and from this date the loan is subject to fixed interest of 9.9% per annum with immediate
payment terms.

The loan from Swissport International AG, included in loan from parent undertaking, is subject to a fixed
interest rate of 9.9%, changed from 4.5% per annum at the end of November 2022, is repayable on demand.
The Directors have oblained from Swissporl International AG their written confirmation that they will not seek
repayment of intercompany loan. On 5th Octaber 2023 the Company issues a further 2 shares for
consideration of £151,496,498 seltled by capitalisation of the loans to Swisspoit International AG which
included all loans which are subject to a fixed interest rate of 0.8% per annum.

Borrowings at 31 December 2022 represent six 7-year bank loans taken out in 2019 and secured against

ground handling equipment. The original loan amounts totalled was £6,536,000 with interest of between 4.4%
and 4.7%. The final tranche of borrowing is repayable by November 2026.

Financial instruments - Fair value of financial liabilities

Except as detailed below, the direclors consider that the camying amounts of financial habilities carried at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

Carryling value Fair value
2022 2021 2022 2021
E'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Trade and other payables 63,700 42,366 63,700 42,366
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 12,773 1,996 12,773 1,996
Loans and borrowings 359,535 336,023 359,535 336,023
Provisions 18,571 16,136 18,571 16,136
Lease liabilities 49,717 51,768 49,717 51,768

504,296 448 289 504,296 448,289

Loans and borrowings are measured at fair value using a market weighted average cost of capital. The above
does not include fair value information for financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value if the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial instruments - Credit risk

Financial risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial l0ss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contraclual obligations and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and
invesiment securities. Management make regular assessments on related party receivables. and there is no
exposure to credit risk on related party debt.

All trade receivables are from the Airport management sector. All assets are in sterling.

-B2.
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24 Financial instruments - Credit risk {Continued)

Excep! as detailed below, the carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which
is net of impairment losses, represents the group's maximum exposure to credit risk.

Maximum credit risk

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Trade receivables 46,357 31,871
Amounts owed by related parties 12,802 10,364
Other receivables 17.624 7,509
Prepayments 7.212 1,529

Receivables due after more than one year 8,551 6,92

The group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover this credit risk.

All trade receivables are from the Airport management sector. Al assets are in sterling.

The aging of trade receivables for the Group at the Batance Sheet date was:

Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021

£'¢00 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Not past due 32,456 (930) 31,526 19,508 (248) 19,260
Past due 0-30 days 2,774 6 2,780 1.485 - 1,485
Past due 31-120 days 4,992 (93) 4,899 9,570 (218) 9,354
More than 120 days 14614 (7.462) 7152 9373 (7.601) 1772
54,836 (8.479) 46,357 39,935 {8,065) 31,871

Significant customer receivables with impairments included in the above analysis are Flybe £2 7m, Thomas
Coak £1.6m and Blue Air Aviation £1.1m.

-53-
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25

Financial instruments - Liquidity risk

Financial nisk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group unless otherwise disclosed. The
maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by carrying value as at the balance
sheet date. The Graup has established procedures {o minimise the risk of default by trade debtors including
detailed credit checks underiaken before a customer is accepted.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities excluding the effect of netting agreements:

1yearorless 1to<2years 2to<5years 5yearsand Contractual Carrying
over cashflow amount
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31
December
2021
Payables to
Group
Undertakings 1,996 - - - 1,996 1,996
Trade and other
payables 42,366 - - - 42,366 42 366
Borrowings 87,411 10,684 31,430 279,885 409,410 336,023
Lease Liabilities 12,267 12,136 28,023 21,719 74,145 51,768
Provisions 8,600 1,000 5,000 1,636 16,136 16,136
152,640 23,820 64,453 303,140 544,053 448,289
At
December 2022
Payables to
Group
Undertakings 12,773 - - - 12,773 12,773
Trade and other
payables 63,700 - - - 63,700 63,700
Borrowings 10,193 2,138 4,647 499,065 516,043 359,535
Lease Liabilities 11,812 12,058 24,326 13,944 62,140 48,717
Provisions 11,638 1,000 5,000 933 18,571 18,571
110,116 15,198 33,973 513,942 673,227 504,296

Interest is being charged at 0.8% (2021: 8%) on loans from Aguila Bid GMBH and at 9.9% on loans from
Swissport International AG. interest an loans from Swissport AG is capitalised and falls due on the date of
loan redemption.
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26 Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Amounts owed to related parties
Accruals

Other payables

All amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured.
27 Lease liabilities

Maturity analysis

Within one year

In two to five years

In over five years

Total undiscounted labilities
Future finance charges and other adjustments

Lease discounting

2022
£'000

11,812
36,385
13,544

62,140
(12.423)

49,717

2021
£'000

12,267
40,160
21,719

74,146
(22,378)

51,76

The Group has lease contracts for leasehold properties, ground handling and cargo airport equipment, motor
vehicles and computer assets, all used in its operations. Leases may have lease terms between 3 and 15
years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's tille to the leased assets. There
are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments.

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of £12,583,000 in 2022 (2021: £16,783,000}.

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Amounts recegnised in profit or Joss include the following:

Interest on lease liabilities
Deprecialion of right-of-use assets
Variable lease payments
Short-term lease payments
Low-value |ease payments

2022
£'000

8,376
41,338

49,714

2022
£000

3,335
9,376
3,190
2,843

234

2021
£'000

10.319
41 449

51.768

2021
£'000

3,407
9,136
2,023
1,463
1,219

-55.
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28

Lease liabilities {Continued)

Total amounts recognised in profit & loss 18,978 17,248

The Group has several lease confracts that include extension and termination aptions. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the
Group’s business needs. For each lease, Managemeni has made an assessment as to whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the option and if so, has amended the lease term appropriately.

The undiscounted potential fulure rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension
and termination options that are not included in the lease term are nil. The Group only recognised options that
it has a legal right to right to exercise, and which are reasonably certain to be exercised. Thereforg, there are
no undiscounted potential future rental payments other than those already included in the lease liability.

Deferred taxation

2022 2021

£000 £'000
Deferred tax liabilities T 8
Deferred tax assetls (3.441) {3.395)

(3,430) (3,387)

Deferred tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assets recognised by the group and movements
thereon during the current and prior reporting period.

ACAs Taxlosses Retirement Total
benefit
obligations
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Asset at 1 January 2021 1,095 741 4,830 6,666
Deferred tax movements in prior year
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss 1.642 {741) {2,705) {1.804)
Charge/(credit) to other comprehensive income - - {1,475) {1.475)
Asset at 1 January 2022 2737 - 650 3.387
Deferred tax movements in current year
Charge/{credit) to profit or loss (302) - 297 (5)
Charge/(credit) to other comprehensive income - - 48 43
Asset at 31 December 2022 2435 - 995 3,430
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Deferred taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax on timing differences in respect of fixed assets have been recognised in full as they are expected
to be utilised within 5 years. An impairment of the £690,000 deferred tax asset brought forward on losses was
recognised in full in the prior year and deferred tax in respect of pension scheme timing differences of
£1,832 000 were also impaired in light of the recent trading performance and the element of uncertainty which
still exists in the market regarding future trade. Trade is forecast to recover to 90 % of pre -COVID levels
within 5 years of the year end. As the aviation industry recovers the company continues to reassess the
potential recovery of temporary differences on an annual basis.

Unrecognised deferred tax of in respect of losses was £42,480,029 at the year end (2021: £27,769,000).

29 Provisions for liabilities
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Employer liability 14,479 13,043
Aviation liability provision 2,228 539
Dilapidation’s provision 1,863 2,554

18,570 16,136

Provisions are classified based on the amounts that are expected to be settled within the next 12 months and
after more than 12 months frem the reporting date, as follows:

Current liabilities 11,637 8,600
Non-current liabilities 6,933 7.536

18,570 16,136

Movements on provisions: Employer Aviation Dilapidation’s Total
liability liability provision
provision

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2022 12,924 657 2,554 16,135
Additional provisions in the year 2.348 1,687 - 4,035
Release of provision - (27) (652) (679)
Utilisation of provision {793) - (39) (832)
Transfer to accruals - (89) - (89)
At 31 December 2022 14,479 18,570

-57-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Provisions for liabilities {Continued)

Employer liability

The Company self-insures against losses that occur from employee claims for injury at work up 1o an excess
amount ot £1million per claim. Amounts above the excess are underwritten by the Company's external
insurers. The level of provision required is determined through an annual extemal actuarial valuation which
considers the incidents which have been reported in the period in addition to a provision for incidents which
have been incurred but not reported which is calculated based on actuarial development curves. The actuary
provides estimaled vllimate losses based on a range of confidence intervals with a value range of £3.8m
{10%) to £5.4m (80%) Management has selected the 90% confidence interval for the provision on 31
December 2022 (2021: 90%).

A provision has been recognised in respect of probable payments in respect of regulatory fines. The amounts
provided for are at the top end of the range of potential costs for medium culpability as advised by external
legal experts. The range specified by the regulator for medium culpability claims is £0.3m - £1.5m.

Aviation liability provision

A provision has been recognised in respect of probable payments in respect of aircraft damage incurred
during the normal course of business. Assumptions on timings and amounts of costs are based on Swissporl's
international aviation insurance experts. The amounts provided for are amounts relating to actual ongoing
aircraft damage incidents recorded at group level.

Contractual rebates provision

A provision has been recognised in respect of customer rebates which potential become due when contractual
volume threshelds are exceeded. The timing of when these costs would be incurred is uncerlain due to
subjective nature of the commercial requirements fo be met which would influence the likelihood of rebates
being paid.

Dilapidation’s provision

A provision has been recognised which is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, being the terminal coslts of repairing or redecorating leased properties in
accordance with lease obligations when returning property to the landlords. Management engaged with
external property surveyors and internal legal experts to carry out an inspection of Swissport GB's property
portfolio and estimate the probable seftlement cast at the balance sheet date. In addition to the surveyors'
report, the Swissport management team have also considered the likelihood that a particular properly will be
exited in the foreseeable future, and our recent experience of how much we have actually paid out for
dilapidation charges from landlords on properties that we have exited in prior months.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

31 Share capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Ordinary share capital Number Number £'000 £'000
Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of £1 each 100,001 100,001 100 100

The company issued 1 ordinary share on incorporation. Cn 17 February 2011 the company issued a further
100,000 shares, for consideration of £24,854,054 settled by capitalisation of amounts owed to its immediate
parent undertaking.

32 Share premium account

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
At the beginning and end of the year 24,754 24 754
33 Contingent liabilities
2022 2021
£000 £'000

Employer liability 1,500 -

A contingent liability has been disclosed in relation to a potential regulatory fine in relation fo injury to
employees while at work. Management have assessed that, at the balance sheei date that regulatory action is
possibie. As with the provision for recorded at the balance sheet date, the legat expert deemed the incident to
be within the medium culpability with harm level 2 category and therefore the sentencing guidelines for
regulatory fines range from £0.3m o £1.5m.

34 Capital commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into no new contracts to purchase vehicles,
equipment, furniture or fittings {2021: Enil).

35 Capital risk management

The group is not subject {o any externally imposed capital requirements.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

36 Events after the reporting date

Cyber security incident

On 10 August 2023, a legacy system server used by the Company and containing pre 1 January 2020 data
was affecled by a cybersecurity incident irmpacling a UK data centre in England managed by the Company's
third-party service provider. As soon as the Company learned of the incident, it immediately communicated the
users to prevent any unauthorised access to the database. The third-party provider has launched an
investigation, notified law enforcement, and engaged cybersecurity experts to help assess the scope of the
incident and take steps to mitigate the potential impact. The investigation is ongoing, and there is no impact
on the Company for costs related to the effect of system-related productivity in the operations.

Employer liability

During 2023 there have been a total of two incidents where a Swissport employee performing work at an
airport was involved in a collision which resulted in injury. Swissport have received expert advice on the range
of possible costs associated with this incident, with the maximum amount being £1.5m per claim.

In line with the requirements of IAS 37 no provision for the costs associated with these incidents has been
made at 31 December 2021 due to the time of their occurrence after the balance sheet date.

During January 2024 there was a collision with a vehicle driven by a third parly which resulted in injury.
Global economy & cost of living crisis

The recession forecast for the global economy, the cost-of-living crisis, and the increase in interest rates may
reduce the demand for international travel and the passenger numbers going through United Kingdom airports
but is unlikely to have a material impact on the Group for 2024 as the general trend forecast by the industry is
for continued growth,

Issue of share capital

On 5 October 2023 Swissport UK Holding Limited issued a further 2 shares for consideration of £151,396,498
settled by capitalisation of amounts owed to its immediate parent undertaking.

On 5 Octeber 2023 Swissport Group UK Limited issued a further 1 shares for consideration of £32,659,102
settled by capitalisation of amounts owed to its immediate parent undertaking.

37 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel, including directors, is set out below in aggregate for each of
the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures,

270 -



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

a7

Related party transactions

Other transactions with related parties

During the year the group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Sale of goods

2022

£000
Aguila Bid GmbH -
Swissport International AG 6 246
Checkport Schweiz AG -
Swissport Kenya Ltd -
Swissport South Africa (PTY) Ltd -
S&L Airport Services Lid -
Swissport Finland Oy -
Swissport Cargo Services The Netherlands
B.V. -
Bradford Swissport Ltd -
Swissporf Amsterdam BV -
Swissport Iretand Limited a4
Swissport Maroc SA 3
Swissport North America inc 151
Swissport Canada Inc. -
Swissport Cargo Services Austria GmbH -
Swissport Cargo Services Deutschland GmbH 227

7,659

The following amounts were outstanding al the reporting end date:

Amounts due to related parties

Swissport Group Services GmbH
Swissport International AG
Aguila Bid GmbH

Swissport Ireland Limited
Checkport Schweiz AG
Swisspoert Finland Oy

Swissport Cargo Services Austria GmbH
S&L Airport Services Ltd
Swisspon! South Africa (PTY) Lid
Swissport Kenya Lid

Swissport Maroc SA

Swissport Amsterdam BV
Swissport Canada Inc.

{Continued)

Purchase of goods

2021
£'000

2022
£000

- 950
19,308
- 16
- 244
- 2
- 8
- 248

- 51
1,192 512
- 38

]
8~

21,388

2022
£000

(a4)
248,607
118.739

523
15
247

368,486

2021
£000

4,495
110

5.180

2021
£000

1,930
208,213
122,213

12

332,368
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

37 Related party transactions
The following amounts were outstanding at the reporting end date:
Amounts due from related parties

Swissport Group Services GmbH
Swissport International AG

Swissport Ireland Limited

Swissport Brasilia Ltda

Swissport Cargo Services Belgium NV
Swissport Oman LLC

Swissport France Holding Sarl.
Bradford Swissport Lid

SwissportALD Lid

Swissport Financing Sarl

Swissport Kenya Ltd

Swissport Maroc SA

Swissport Denmark AS

Swissport Canada Inc.

Swissport North America In¢
Swissport Cargo Services Deutschland GmbH

2022
£'000

11,082
923
23

14

37
629

12,802

{Continued)

2021
£000

582

5,028

3,066
23
@)
13

593
1,066

(16)
)
()
%)

10,366

T2~



SWISSPORT UK HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

38 Controlling party

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Swissport International AG, incorporated in Switzerland.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking was Radar Topco SARL at the year end, and the company's
results were included in its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of
Swissport UK Holdings Limited for 31 December 2022 are prepared under International Financial Reporting
Standards and are avaifable fo the public and may be obtained from Swissporl UK Holdings Limited,
Swissport House, Hampton Court, Manor Park, Runcorn, Cheshire, WAY 1TT, United Kingdom.

38 Cash generated from operations

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Loss for the year before income tax (20,109) (3.822)
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates and joint ventures {388) {51}
Finance costs 15.165 14,379
Investment income (1,063) (1,017}
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 18 {(17)
Depreciation and impairment of properly, plant and equipment 13,515 13,837
Pension scheme non-cash movement {4,889) (3,511)
Increase in provisicns 2,848 4,639
Increase in insurance reimbursement (827) -
Movements in working capital:
Decreasel/(increase) in inventories 365 {916)
increase in trade and other receivables (33.723) {12,564)
Increase in trade and other payables 46,383 17,503

Cash generated from operations 17.295 28,460
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
2022 2021
Notes £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments 42 81,669 81,669
Other receivables 43 147,328 109,229
228,997 180,898
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 43 6 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 6
6 6
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables 46 67,368 44 896
Borrowings 44 203,546 179,570
270,914 224,466
Net current liabilities (270,908} (224,460)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 44 118,789 118,790
Net liabilities (160,700) {152,352)
Equity
Called up share capital 47 100 100
Share premium account 24,754 24,754
Retained eamings (185.554) (177,2086)
Total equity (160 700} (152,352)

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 76 to 79 form part of these parent financial statements.

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has nol presented its own income statement and related
notes, The company's loss for the year was £8,348,458 (2021 - £8.351 966 loss).

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on ... and
are signed on its behalf by:

K Cox
Director

Company registration number 07466896 {England and Wales)
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Share Retained Total
capital premium  eamings
account

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2021 100 24,754 {168.854) (144,000}
Year ended 31 December 2021:
1 ass and total comprehensive income - - (8.352) (8,352)
Balance at 31 December 2021 100 24 754 {177.206) {152,352}
Year ended 31 December 2022;
Loss and total comprehensive income - - {8,348) (8,348)
Balance at 31 December 2022 100 24,754

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes an pages 76 to 79 form part of these parent financial statements.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

40

40.1

Accounting policies

Company information

Swissport UK Holdings Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales,
The registered office is Swissport House, Hampton Caurt, Manor Park, Runcorn, Cheshire, United Kingdom,
WAT7 1TT. The company's principal activities and nature of its operations are disclosed in the directors’ report.

Accounting convention

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Finangial Reporting Standard 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework” (FRS 101") and the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using
FRS 101. FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosures framework for a qualifying entity that would otherwise apply
the recognition, measurement and disclosures requirements of UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The Company is a qualifying entity
for the purposes of FRS 101.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these
financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

1. the requirements of IFRS 7 * Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

2. the requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement”

3. the requirement in paragraphs 38 of IAS 1 " Presentation of Financial Statements” to present comparative
infarmation in respect of:

(i) paragraph 79{a)(iv) of IAS 1 and

(i) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment”

4, the requirements of IAS 7 " Statement of Cash Flows"

5. the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors”

6. the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”

7. the requirements in IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” to disclose related party transactions entered into
between two or more members of a group.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financia! statements are rounded to the nearest £'600.

The company applies accounting policies consistent with those applied by the group. To the extent thal an
accounting policy is relevant to both group and parent company financial statements, please refer to the group
financial statements for disclosure of the relevant accounting policy.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

40 Accounting policies {Continued)

40.2 Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. In assessing the going concern
assumptions, the Board has assessed the forecast oufturns and assessed identified downside risks and
mitigating actions for a period to 31 January 2025,

The COVID-19 crisis has significantly impacted the financial performance of all organisaticns in the industry,
including the Group, most noliceably during the most severe restrictions on movement and international
travel, which were in 2020 and early 2021. Globally, many markets have re-opened, and current activity levels
are rebounding. Recent industry analysis gives a more sfable view of expected activity levels over the going
concern assessment period to 31 January 2025. In their assessment, the Directors have utilised externally
available data to inform their forecast base case for the UK businesses operated by Swisspori Group.

The Directors know that inflation and the cost-of-living crisis will likely have a residual impact in 2024 as
markets adjust. The budget and plan assumed an inflation rate of 5% in 2024 and 3% in 2025. The Company
has no external funding; therefore, the current interest rate increase does not adversely impact the Company’s
finances. The Board has considered the forecasts, downside sensitivities, reverse stress test, and the cash
resources available to the Company. It has determined that the actions it has taken and measures the
Company have available in the future, should they be required, are sufficient fo mitigate the uncertainty.
General staff attrition levels and contract details allow the Company to manage its labour costs where
necessary. Lease expenditure can be reduced, and experience gained during the pandemic has alsc shown
that non-fabour station overheads can be reduced when necessary

Taking this into account and lo assess the Company's ability 1o remain a going concern, management has
modejled both a base case scenario and a severe but plausible downside scenario through 1o 31 January
2025, The downside scenario assumes a reductlion in passenger revenue from the base case of 10%. Under
the severe but plausible downside scenario management have assumed a cash outflow in November 2024
relating to setllement of several potential claims(refer note 28). During 2024 under the base case scenario the
forecast cash balance ranges from a low of £4.1m, which will be remediated by the Groups cash pooling
arrangement and a high of £32.3m, with a 3t March 2025 closing balance of £19.9m. Under neither the base
case scenario nor the severe but plausible scenano, would the Group require financial support from its parent
entity.

The Directors assessed what (evel that revenue would need to fall to that would render the going concern
assumption invalid, even with parental support. This reverse stress test was run at a 67% reduction in
revenue; however, it is assumed staff can be made redundant and other further cost savings made in this
severe downside scenario to mitigate the impact. The Oirectors, therefore, consider this a remote and
implausible scenario.

Given the need for parental support under both the base case and severe but plausible scenarios, the
Directors have obtained from Swissport International their written confirmation that they will not seek
repayment of intercompany loans (amounting to £205m at the balance sheet date) and that they will provide
financial support to the Group in meeting its liabiities as and when they fail due, but only to the extent that
money is not otherwise available to meet such liabilities through to 31 January 2025 up to a maximum
aggregate amount of £40m. The directors have acknowledged the letter of support and are satisfied with its
cornitents.

The Directors have considered the availability of that support from Swissport International during adverse
circumstances, also taking into account that Company completed a refinancing in September 2322 in which
the Company was subsequently made a cross-guarantor, They have reviewed the base and severe but
plausible downside forecast Company cash flows over the assessment period and concluded that Company
would indeed be able to provide the fuading support. In coming to this conclusion, the Directors considered
the Company's historical forecasting accuracy, the assumplions underpinning the forecast, and the amounts
and timings of the cashflows, particularly noting the availability of cash batances and undrawn facilities.

As a result of the above review and analysis, the Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its financial statements.
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

41

42

43

44

Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was:

2022 2021
Number Number
Total - -
Investments
Current Non-current
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Investments in subsidiaries - - 81,669 81,669

Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Except as detailed below the direclors beleve that the carrying amounts of financial assets carried at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

lnvestment in subsidiary undertakings
Details of the company's principal operating subsidiaries are included in note 16.

Trade and other receivables

Current Non-current
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts owed by related parties - - 147,328 109,229
Prepayments 6 - - -
& . 147,328 109,229
Borrowings
Current Non-current
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Borrowings held at amortised cost:
L.oan payabe to Swissport international AG 203,546 179,570 -
Loan payable to Aquila Bid GMBH - 118,789 118,790
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SWISSPORT UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

44

45

46

47

Borrowings (Continued}

The loan from Aguila Bid GmbH is subject to a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The loan is currently on an
interest-only repayment basis with no repayment date of December 2024 for the principal loan amount. On 5
October 2023 the Agila Bid loan was exchanged pound for pound with the Swisspart AG Loan and from this
date the loan is subject to fixed interest of 4.5% per annum with immediate payment terms.

The loan from Swissport International AG is subject to a fixed interest rate of 4.5% per annum repayable as at
31 December 2021. On 5th October 2023 the Company issues a further 2 shares for consideration of
£151,496,498 settled by capitalisation of the loans to Swissport International AG which included all loans
which are subject to a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.

Fair value of financial liabilities

Except as detailed below, the directors consider that the carmrying amounts of financial iabiiities carried at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

Carrying value Fair value
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Trade and other payables 43 35 43 35
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 67.325 44,861 67.325 44 861
{oans and borrowings 322,335 298,360 322,335 298,360
389,703 343,256 389,703 343,256

Trade and other payabies

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Amounts owed to related parties 67,325 44 861
Accruals 43 35

67,368 44 896

Share capital

Refer to note 31 of the group financial statements.
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